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OF MAUl

(C.c. No. 08-55)

... (gavel) . .. Good evening, everyone.
Committee meeting is at Maui Waena Intermediate School this evening.
the meeting to order. First of
so happy to see a lot you out here tonight to give
public testimony to the Fiscal Year 2009 Mayor's Budget. Let me give you some ground rules.
If you can turn off your cell phones to the off position or the silent mode at this time as not to
interrupt the people that are testifying tonight. At this time, I'd like to call on our Member from
the Wailuku District, Mr. Victorino, to introduce the rest of the Members, that are here this
evemng.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and good evening, everybody. I'd like to
start on my far right, your left. The ... just to make sure I get it right. This young lady
represents the south side of the island, the Kihei District (KiheilMakenaiWailea). I'd like to
introduce Member Michelle Anderson. The next young lady comes from the Upcountry area
(the PukalanilKula area) and she, many of you know, for many years, was the head of MEO.
I'd like to introduce Ms. Gladys Baisa. Next to Ms. Baisa, this handsome young man comes
island of Lanai.
our Council Chair, Mr. G. Riki Hokama.
gentleman next to

is supporting
as Pauline Martins, who is
Committee Secretary
supporting the staff is my Executive Assistant, Kelly McGinnis. Ladies and gentlemen,
tonight, we are taking public testimony again on the Fiscal Year 2009 Budget as proposed by
the Mayor of this County, Mayor Charmaine Tavares. You have three minutes to testify with
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to conclude. After you have spoken for three minutes,
you,
IS
at
your completion of your testimony, please
you
around and go back to your seat. Please wait for a few seconds because we may
some
Members
we are here to receive
questions for you this evening. 1'd just like to
public testimony and if you do have questions on some of the issues
is being brought
Tonight,
first
we
a lot of
you can go
and ask ... ask
testifiers by the way; and hopefully, we can do this as quickly and as efficiently as possible.
The first testifier this evening is Norita DeLima followed by Cyje Edlao. Norita?
HHHUI,,,,

... BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..
MS. DeLIMA: Good evening.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh!
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Come closer, closer. Turn 'em on.
MS. DeLIMA: Good evening. My name is Norita-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Make ... make more low.

MS. DeLIMA: Thank you.
PONTANILLA:

next testifier is Cyje Edlao
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Good
My name is Cyje
is located. . .
is co-located at
Edlao,
a teacher at Kansha Preschool,
Nisei Veterans Memorial Center with
Maui Adult Day Care. Our program was created to
educate our young children and to develop relationships between both young and old residents
ofMaui County. My grandmother also attends the Maui Adult Day Care on a daily basis and I
have been privileged to witness the benefits of our intergenerational program
the view of
a teacher and a granddaughter. Our intergenerational program has given children the
opportunity to gain and practice necessary skills caring for our kupuna.
return,
seniors
embrace the company of the children as well as the motivation to be actively engaged in
activities that stimulate their mental and physical abilities. We also strive to pay tribute to the
Nisei Veterans and all those previously or currently in service. Our children recently sent
pictures and paintings to soldiers who were serving in Iraq during Christmas. I urge you to
include Kansha Preschool in your 2009 Maui County Budget. Your previous support has
helped to enhance our program in ways that would have otherwise been unattainable. We
depend on your support to help Kansha Preschool continue to build positive relationships
between our keiki and kupuna ofMaui County. Thank you for your time. Any questions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier at this time? Seeing
none, thank you, again.
MS. EDLAO: Thank you.
PONTANILLA: Tracy Souza followed by Pohako Moikeha,

want to go.
to ~V'UH'~~
one
Everybody
one
to use both transportations with
high cost of gas, maintenance, and insurance. We are lucky
to have good, reliable Maui transportation. Thank you, Mayor Charmaine Tavares and
Maui County Council, for your help and understanding. Mahalo.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you,

COUNCILMEMBER
wanted to ask
SOUZA:

Souza. Members, any questions for

Mahalo,
Mahalo,
... the bus
only allows two wheelchairs.

testifier? Member

Souza, for your
bus system is that?

I

Maui Bus.

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Maui Bus.
MR. SOUZA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And the only reason two wheelchairs are allowed is that's all they
have in order to strap down the chairs-MR. SOUZA: That's the space.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --available?
MR. SOUZA: That's the space available in the bus because it's a passenger. It's also a passenger bus.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. And have you seen many times where more than two
wheelchairs were waiting for the bus and somebody had to wait for the next one?

PONTANILLA:

you. Members,

more questions? Member Victorino?
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are

MR. SOUZA: No.
--as
MR. SOUZA: Yeah, it has been cut back. It has actually

cut way back.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. SOUZA: The transportation was for Saturdays, Sundays, and the weekdays. Now, there's no
Sunday; and Saturday's transportation starts from 2 o'clock. So if you want to ... you want to
go to the shopping center, you're going have to use the Maui Bus too. So you can make
transportation, like I said. But I have been using MEO for so long and we're happy with the
drivers and stuff; but then because of the cutbacks, they had to ... it was eliminated.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And this new para ... transportation that you were referring to,
that you make a reservation; you pay $2; then they come pick you up; take you where you need
to go; and bring you back?
MR. SOUZA: Yeah.

. .. they'll come into your HV''''''''--

as
MR. SOUZA: Because of my disability, it's
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
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me.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay,
you.
you, again, Mr. Souza.

more questions
followed by

MR. MOIKEHA: Aloha and good evening, Maui County ... County Council.
you for coming
out here this evening. My name is Pohako Moikeha, Jr., which Bill knows me very well from
long time ago and ... I'm here to represent Maui Adult Day Care Center, which my mom is
right here. Her name is Evelyn, and she's 90 years old. She's been going over there for the last
six ... times a week, during the week that I'm working. I just wanted to ask that this Maui
Adults Day Care is such a supporting team program. It really makes a difference of my mom,
you know, not being at home; but this adults day care is very supportive and it really makes my
mom in a different person, different attitude, and she's ... she really likes it over there every
day that she goes to it. Also, I wanted to have it to be continued if you guys could support this
Maui Adult Day Care Center, to keep the cost down. Making like me, as a caregiver, so that
we can afford it ... while we go down to adults day care. I know I, I wanted to thank you and
... for coming this evening and for your kindness and your generation [sic] for supporting the
Maui Adult's Day Care. Aloha.
PONTANILLA:

you,

Moikeha.

Members, any questions

I

so understanding. They
of liquidates
hours,

support
they work something out
mom has a great son.

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: That's
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one,
... (laughter) ...

COUNCILMEMBER

you.

JJ1 '-H"}1 "

I don't

any

siblings. They

passed away.

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much.
MR. MOIKEHA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Moikeha, thank you very much. You're still a great son. Duke Kuhia
followed by Shyla Kapoi.
MR. KUHIA: Good evening, Member. Good evening, Chair Pontanilla and Members of the Budget
Committee. My name is Duke Kuhia, and I'm here to ask for your continued support ofMEO
Youth Bank program and for the MEO Transportation Department. I would also like to thank
you for funding this program in the past. Thank you for making MEO a dream come true for
youths and volunteers of Maui. I'm a student at Maui Waena School. I'm in the 8th grade. I
live in Kahului. I've been at MEO Youth Bank program for approximately two years.
October, I got suspended for 90 days for selling pakalolo. The staff of MEO has helped me a
helped me
homework
8 to 2 every day
afternoons. I learned life
to say

so we can
to
to remove
big fire. We also
went to Hana and learned about our culture. We have learned a chant. We planted taro. I
made ulu poi. We learned how to dive and clean fish. We also learned that coconut is a very
important plant to
Hawaiians. I have also learned job skills from Uncle Mark. He is a
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volunteer that helps at MEO all the
more responsible
respectful. I
me in
you please support the funding
use it
transportation and new tools for our
work
my friends to be better citizens
Maui County. Thank you for
to
do
people of
.

days.
giving me
Mahalo.
" , . II r l •• "

PONTANILLA: Thank you,
testifier? Member Baisa?

You did a great job! Members, any questions for the

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Good evening and thank you for being here. We enjoyed your
testimony. You certainly did a lot this last year. In your testimony, you mentioned something
that caught my interest. You said when you get your stipend, you take it to the credit union.
Can you explain what that's about?
MR. KUHIA: When we do community work days, we get a stipend and we put it--MEO has a credit
union that we put our money in to save up.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: So the staff goes with you to the credit union.
Yes.
carne to

next

I hope I

name
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MS. KAPOI: Good evening, Chair Pontanilla and Members
I am
to ask
support
to thank you for
MEO Transportation. I
also
years. I am a
in Baldwin
School and I live
helped me become a
person. I enjoy MEO's staff and I learned a
past year, I went to Hana
we helped
neighbor's house and
up the back yard. I
been
about two years and
Youth
We go ... we gone camping in
Hana. We
life skills ... like teamwork, culture, and community projects such as cleaning
people's yards. We start at girls, we start, we just started girls circle and we learned about our
body and how can we become a young lady. I believe that ever since I was in MEO Youth
Bank, it has helped me stay out of trouble. Please support the funding for the MEO Youth
Bank and MEO Transportation. It will help me and friends be better citizens of MEO [sic]
County.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Ms. Kapoi. Members, any questions for the testifier this
evening? Seeing none, again, thank you very much.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Good job!
PONTANILLA: Okay. Next testifier is Mr. Pinedo-Vehikite.
MR. PINEDO-VEHIKITE: Good evening Chair Pontanilla and the Members of the Budget
Committee. My name is Vilivaka Pinedo-V ehikite, and
here to ask for your support
you for
Bank program. I would also like to
at Maui Waena

County of Maui.
you know
CPR and first aid. Weare in a process of working on a
Thank you for
opportunity to testify for all you do for
you.
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any
""'H.nJ'"

Baisa.

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
your
H''-'HH'VU'''''' making trips to
to
you folks go to
and
the adult leaders?
MR. PINEDO-VEHIKITE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. So you guys go with Uncle Hatota?
MR. PINEDO-VEHIKITE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. He's the one teaching you how to cook over there?
MR. PINEDO-VEHIKITE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you very much.
PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
resnrrlonv was very good.

COUNCILMEMBER

You do?
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bus--both. . .. (chuckled) ...

MR.

COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: I see. I was just curious. Do you, well
when you
why you ride
you
the public
you can go
you want-MR. PINEDO-VEHlKITE:
COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: --and you. Do you have to pay?
MR. PINEDO-VEHlKITE: Yes.
COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: And when you ride the MEO Bus?
MR. PINEDO-VEHlKITE: No.
COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: You don't have to pay?
MR. PINEDO-VEHlKITE: No. Only if you go like ... (chuckled) ... oh--no.
COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: No, the reason I ask is I was told by a group of kids
appreciate the MEO Transportation because
don't have money to pay?

a

MR.

Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Very, very good.
",uun",,- to

youth bank

you.

to

"-,,.u-'Hi.LJH.U"J'~~~

VICTORINO: I
want to ask
one
away.
curious. Many of you have mentioned about CPR
many in your group are certified under
program?

. .. (chuckled) ... No run
first-aid
How

MR. PINEDO-VEHIKITE: All of us.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: How much is all of you?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: (NOTE: Speakingfrom the audience.) Fifteen.
MR. PINEDO-VEHIKITE: About ... yeah, 50.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Fifty of you are certified?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: (NOTE: Speaking from the audience.) Fifteen!
MR. PINEDO-VEHIKITE: Wait--15! ... (chuckled) ...

you. Kelli

by
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MS. RIOS:
kind of nervous. My name's Kelli Rios and I have two kids the Maui youth,
MEO
Bank. can
that their
at
changed.
good
me
they
III
positive
When they corne
they're proud to
program.
it's just going to
beach cleaning
they're
Polipoli
trees,
learning CPR and first aid.
really proud of my two kids and all the
kids. They corne
a positive program
I guess
the staff is
over and playas well.
really do a
for
kids.
PONTANILLA:

you, Ms. Rios. Member Victorino?

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ms. Rios, real quick question. Thank you for your testimony.
Do you find that they are, not only with what they're doing in the MEO Maui Youth Bank, but
in school, at horne, more respectful-MS. RIOS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --more willing to help you, as ... as a part of the household?
MS. RIOS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And the last thing I wanted to know is have you, have you seen
their grades go up?
My daughter's an honor-role student, which she has been;
son too has

it seems like she
grades.

a

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
you, Chair.
MS. RIOS:

Okay.... (chuckled) ...

you.
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MORRIS: Good evening,
good evening,
I
you
us here. First, I want to say thank you so much for the gift last year. It has got us a long way to
our
campaign goal of $10
We are now $3
to that goal. So we do thank
... seven years
you so much for the gift you did last year. I want to tell you a few things
ago, the YMCA was serving about 5,500 folks annually.
past year in 2007, we served
13,000; and in fact, over 96,000 times last year, 96,000 times, somebody used a Y program or
facility. That's a lot of folks that we're impacting on an annual basis. And yes,
Councilmember Baisa, those handicapped folks--who are coming to the Y and using the
swimming pool for therapy and then being taken back home--use MEO buses to be delivered to
the Y, so we use it. I do have a couple other folks that want to testify on behalf of the Y, so I
won't take up much of your time. I appreciate again. Thank you so much for last year's gift
and, hopefully, you'll be favorable again this year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you, Mr. Morris. Tony and Chris Leone followed by Rebecca Woods.
MR. T. LEONE: All Council members, the Chairperson, thanks for this opportunity to speak.
(NOTE: Someone s adjusting the microphone stand.) Take it down? Okay. He's tall .
. . . (chuckled) ... We're here on behalf of the YMCA, once again. And if you've heard this
story before, we've testified a
short form.
exactly, our SWlmlTIlIJlg n'r""rrCl

C.LEONE:

I

YMCA.

you go .. ,. (chuckled) ... Thanks so

- 17 -

for your support.

AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
Maui Waena Intermediate School Cafeteria

March 31, 2008

PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members,

T. LEONE: Okay,

questions for

... or testifiers? Thank

you.
Rebecca Woods

by Nicole

Woods?

MS. WOODS: Good evening.
to testify on two issues. First, the YMCA. The YMCA
provides our kids
summer camp and spring camp, which include soccer, archery,
swimming. They've provided services to over 60 of our children over the years. We really
depend on the YMCA to help us out during holidays when parents are working, and they really
are an asset to our facility. On another note--because I only have three minutes--I would like to
testify on behalf of the rental assistance program (RAP). That program has been detrimental in
assisting our clients, moving from our shelter into housing of their own. A lot of the clients,
they have their life skills met. They've become self-sufficient pretty much, but getting that
deposit or giving that first month's rent is very difficult. So it's helped us move our families
from the shelter into the community at a much quicker pace, so that we're able to bring other
people from the beach or who are living in their cars into our shelter. So I want to say thank
you very much and hope that we can continue with the rental assistance program. Any
questions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Ms. Woods at this time? Seeing
none, thank you very much for being here.

day clients
provide an educational and bonding
is priceless
this day
age.
Kansha Preschool and I humbly request that you support Kansha within your fiscal means.
you. Members, any
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MS. CHEN:
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Maybe I can ask
for your child to go there?

teacher

on. And is

a

MS. CHEN: There is a tuition, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And is there any assistance to help you with the tuition?
MS. CHEN: There is some assistance.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: From the school, the school assists you with that?
MS. CHEN: I'm not exactly sure. I'm not one of the parents that requires that, but I believe they ...
they, some of the other parents do need that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see.
MS.

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA:
MS.

to

ages are

yeah.
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MS.

Okay, thanks.
PONTANILLA: Members,
by

MS. DOl:

sorry.

Chair, I

Doi

more

you skipped

Lewis.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Gerri Lewis? ... (chuckled) ...
MS. DOl: Gerri Lewis. She's in the house.
MS. LEWIS: I'm here!
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Gerri Lewis, first.
MS. DOl: Yeah.
MS. LEWIS: Good evening. Thank you. I was gonna read off here, but I guess I'm just gonna talk by
my ... from my heart. I am a parent. That's my daughter, Valentina, and Brooklyn--she's my
niece. Tia's my daughter, and they both attend Kansha Preschool.
here on behalf of
support of
Kansha Preschool. It is
only intergenerational school, and I definitely
to attest

MS.

Yes.
PONTANILLA: My apologies

not calling you
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MS.

That's okay.
PONTANILLA:
for
questions. . .. (chuckled) ...

MS.

agam.

. .. I probably do.
PONTANILLA: Go

MS. DOl: That's okay.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --Charlene.
MS. DOl: I'm kinda like the cleanup batter anyway. I want to thank you for the privilege of speaking
before you again and also to thank you for the support that we got last year from the County
because it truly made a difference in us being able to do the kind of program that we set out to
do. So what I'm gonna talk about a little bit is the benchmarks that we hit this year. Thank you
in large part to what the County was able to provide for us. We're all in our second year of
collaborating with the Maui Adult Day Care; and as you heard from the parents, the best part of
the program is the interaction among themselves and with the grandpas and grandmas. And the
days that we, you know, that we're late or we're not able to get over there, both the children
and the grandpas and grandmas are truly disappointed. So we have a real family atmosphere
where we are, and that was the goal that the Nisei Veterans set out to do, in creating the two
We're also happy to report that our current
1

was
IS . . .
you cannot
to become
first steps
doing
it does take a
it also costs a
accredited, so we're
lot, about a thousand dollars to do the whole accreditation process. So it's kind of, we're kind
of between a rock and a hard place right now; but I do believe we have the
of program that
would be accredited, hands down. Okay.
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our
are on a subsidy
Care Connections and Preschool Open Doors). We've also
assistance
So like I said,
of our families are
through Good Beginnings Alliance and
on assistance.
they are
ones that can afford every increase in
The parents
who have to pay the
fare,
had to charge
we
need to charge,
would not
be able to afford
program. So I can
you straight up
the
does not cover, you
past
know, not even two-thirds of our operating costs; and what the County grant did for us
year was allow us to staff Cyje because we really do need that third person. We are running a
meal program and we cannot do it with two people. The benefit of having somebody who's
trained like Cyje is she can also step in when we need a substitute. So we try to build in all
these factors that enrich our program.
MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MS. DOl: Okay, thank you. And so, you know, we just humbly ask for your consideration again. We
feel that we're doing a great service to the community and we hope that you will support us
again. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Ms. Doi. Members, any questions? Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you for being--hi! Thank you for being here tonight. You
said that your classroom is, I guess, certified for 16 but you ... you feel
you can really

MS.

Unless we're able to knock out a

somewhere,
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so I wanted to know, you know, that's unfortunate because
IS
So

MS.
ANDERSON:
MS. DOl: Okay,

to

US

an

There's a waiting

for at least

of

slots

next year.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: For at least half?
MS. DOl: At least half of the slots for next year.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: For next year?
MS. DOl: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But ...
MS. DOl: And the number keeps growing. The number does keep growing.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON:
just trying to get an idea. You've got slots for
those slots, how many people carne
asking
you know,

to be

COUNCILMEMBER
you're
testimony. Thank you for providing that. You're saying that you're increasing your tuition and
registration fees
corning year. Can you
me how
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MS. DOl: We're going from $540 a month
were able to,

7:30 to 4 to--it's a $10 increase on both levels. You
say $50-$60 more;
it
out a lot
not affordable to do it

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Going

to

again?

MS. DOl: Okay. It's a $10 increase from $540 to $550.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MS. DOl: Or from $590 to $600, and the registration fee went up from $150 to $175. So those, it ...
I mean it seems really minor but it's big jumps for families-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MS. DOl: --that have to foot the bill all by themselves.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Definitely.
MS. DOl: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

you very

is true.

MS. DOl: Yes, it does.
COUNCILMEMBER

H.LI..".LJ.L.Ln.. ' - - ' "

to
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MS.
encourage you to

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So I
MS. DOl: Yeah.

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: But thank you for the work that you're doing.
MS. DOl: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier?
MS. DOl: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you for being here. Madi Witt followed by Leon Custodio.
MS.

(NOTE: Three Hispanic men--Jesus, Armando, and Calistro--stood behind her.) Aloha
and Good evening. My name is Madi Witt and
a Maui County College student.
here
tonight with some classmates--Jesus,
y e Calistro. I encourage you to continue to
program. I
H0IJ<UJlV

you

being

MS. WITT:
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matter

MS.

The H~'-'HHJ'-'~

about the three
men--Jesus,
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA:
Calistro--standing behind her.) Just ... just those,
ones you have
you.

MS.

Oh! They do different things. iffilmnlm, construction?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No, landscaping ... landscaping.
MS. WITT: Oh!
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Landscaping.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: A landscaper?
MS. WITT: Yeah, yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay.
MS.

Landscaping

interesting

BAlSA:
times, we're not aware
MS.
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to

want to

work.

So
MS.

very

Yeah. No

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKERS: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Leon Custodio followed by Adele Rugg.
MR. CUSTODIO: Hello. Good evening. Thank you very much for being here. My name is Leon
Salvador Central
Custodio. I'm here with Hector, who's my classmate. I'm originally from
America. I've been living in the beautiful State of Hawaii for about six years, since 2002. I
would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to MEO and Enlace Hispano. I have
been attending the Spanish-English language exchange for about a year and a half. This group
is coordinated by Professor Molly Fleming ofMCC and MEO's Enlace Hispano program. This
group is made of native Spanish speakers, like me, who want to practice English with the MCC
students, who want to practice Spanish. In this group, I also learn about popular expressions,
English grammar, and American culture. I shared stories about growing up in my country and
Spanish sayings, and tried to help the students with their questions about the Spanish. Each
I come

MS. RUGG: My name is Adele Rugg, President of
let me thank each
you for the
much appreciated.
Mayor's Budget,
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Concerns, on Page 10-24,
Maui Choral Arts Association has received our first ever
$25,000.
are so very
to be
Mayor's Budget
are
evening to ask you to keep this
Budget.
Maui Choral Arts Association
was founded in 2003 by a small group of people, who love the art of singing. Over
last four
years, the 50-member Maui Choral Arts Association has held at least four performances
year throughout Maui. At each concert, we have had over 400 or more patrons the audience.
We have held concerts
our churches and the Castle Theatre. These events always cost
on for the community. For the last few years, we have led the ever
thousands of dollars to
popular holiday scene, singing seasonal Sing-It-YourselfMessi~h. We have asked our talented
local musicians to play music with us; have been able to bring over members of the Honolulu
Symphony; and when those musicians are on island, we do community outreach to our local
schools. We have reached out to the schools in Central Maui, Kihei, and Upcountry. We have
a waiting list of schools who would like our choir and musicians to visit them. Just a few
weeks ago, the Maui Choral Arts Association hosted the world renowned Hawaii Youth Opera
Chorus. The Keawala'i Church choir and the Galliard String Quartet at the Makawao Union
Church. You may have seen the pictures in the Maui News of these organizations as they
toured Maui for the weekend. And on Sunday, April 6th , at 2:00 p.m., we are having our
second annual Opera Rocks II concert at the Maui Arts and Cultural Center. I would like to
invite each one of you, your staff, and the guests in the audience to attend this concert. It will
be outstanding. Last year, we had over 600 attendees at our Opera Rocks performance. They
loved the show and begged for more opera. We know that Maui loves opera and our chorus
has been practicing for many months to put this show together for the community. It is truly a
labor of love for all of our volunteer choristers. With an additional $25,000, we will be able to
bring more
and to our
our schools. Thanking
Arts

pause,
Rugg
Council member.) ...

to
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you,
Wow, now I

two. Thank

you.
MR. DUEY: Good evening, Council Chair Pontanilla, and
you prosperous Members of the County,
Maui County Council. I checked in to make sure we didn't have the same shirt on tonight, so .
. . . (chuckled) ... I have a question. Can I, can I ask you a question about a Budget item or
not? Is that?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No.
MR. DUEY: Okay. They've referenced on Page 5-7 of the summary, under Drainage (lao Stream
Drainage) in the Fiscal Year 2010 - 2014, I see a $20 million Budget item there. I don't know
what that's for. I hope it's to take out the concrete in the bottom of the channel. As you know,
I'm here to talk about one thing. When it comes to Council, it's always one thing--water. The
goals I see in this handout--to plan, develop, and manage a sustainable domestic water supply,
and to preserve and protect our natural resources. To that end, I would like to see a big storage
reservoir. I've talked to three or four of you, individually, along with a few other members. I
did go to the Board of Water Supply last Thursday and brought my, what I call "my five
solutions to
water problem". All of you know, we do have a big water problem. My five
solutions are: recycle; conservation; desal [sic];
of course, storage. You folks
not
two CUB"...,'''.
1

facilities move, we
some more space
about a
square and approximately 70
deep,
reservoir beyond Waiale that's not being used. It's a dry reservoir right now.
MR. JENSEN:

minutes.

- 29-

AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
Maui Waena Intermediate School Cafeteria

March 31, 2008

I was afraid
Waihee water goes
now.
goes in
now.
here asking for
is a study to prove me
wrong, that it cannot be used. Right now, the figures that Carl Freedman got to
a
billion-gallon reservoir is $108 million in today's money.
I believe, would solve our ...
go a long way to solve our water problem.
storage of excess runoff, we're
a
contested-case hearing now
doing the
be water restored to
streams and
above
water is restored to mauka-makai flow. Some of
water could be
in
reservoirs.
ditches have 100-million-gallon capacity right now. I'd like to see a study that
proved that it, what
suggesting won't work. I don't know what the study would cost. For
$100,000, you'd get $100,000 worth of information. For 250, you'd get $250,000 worth of
information. I was looking at some of the line items in here to see where the money could
come from for the study.
MR. JENSEN: Four minutes.
MR. DUEY: Thank you. . .. (chuckled) ... Any questions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, John. Members, any questions? Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thanks for coming, John.
MR. DUEY: You're welcome.

IS
~<.~H treatment
the County
or
may not get half of
water.
450 ... 4.5
gallons of water is not going to go very
long
way development's going, so that's just a stopgap measure. I'm looking at 50 years
down the line.
$100
now,
50 years, you divvy that was not very much money.
as I told
Board of Water Supply, somebody has to
the bullet. Somebody has to say,
,....
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"we gotta spend the money to solve this water problem". And now is the ideal
IFS gets
to oral arguments
give a recommendation to
Commission on what's ...
intake's gonna have to be redesigned so
some
water goes to
be an ideal
because the corps
have to get involved
all that--Corps of
Engineers--so now that would be an ideal time to change the design of the intakes to get
water to
ocean
get the water into the reservoir, so it seems to be an ideal
to ...
this to happen. And the other thing I wanted to mention while
going, why
watershed needs to be condemned to get it under control of the County, so the County can have
the water and do with, you know, what needs to be done.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Have you talked to Carl Freedman about the study? Did he give
you any idea on what kind of-MR. DUEY: I called Carl, again.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --system?
MR. DUEY: Evidently, I should have called him yesterday but he was out. He was away from his
phone and I don't have a--I told him he could give me an estimate of what it costs for a study.
What I'd like to see is ... if the ditch capacity is the same? Is there any restriction in the
ditches, where it couldn't get that amount of water through there? He did do some preliminary
studies on the capacity of the reservoir as the inflow and outflow and all this; but as far as the
dollar amount, no. I don't have that. Carl should be able to
us
I ... I
get
I
guess he was busy

MR.

And ...
There was a
$73,200,000 and ...

sorry. One--if I may? One other
I don't know I can
here for
Year 2010 4 sent to Maui Source Development for
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DUEY: Okay. I ...

just like to ...

PONTANILLA:
We had a fairly good discussion
of us, that day;
day,
they
capital .
projects
major dollars that's gonna be sent 2010 and beyond was talked about at that
concentration for tonight is
2009 capital improvement budget.

other

MR. DUEY: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And thank you very much for your testimony.
MR. DUEY: ... (end a/tape, start 2A at 7:10 p.m.). .. to me. Aloha.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Heidi Kalehuawehe followed by Annette Golis.
MS. H. KALEHUAWEHE: Aloha and Good evening, Maui County Council. My name is Heidi
Kalehuawehe. I'm the Unit Director for Boys and Girls Club in Paukukal0. Our site is located
in the Hawaiian Homes community, and we use the community center. Our club takes
members from ages 6-17 years old. These members come from a variety of different schools
around the island. They are transported by MEO Transportation. Two of my other schools are
transported by Roberts, which are our Hawaiian emerge students,
is King
amount

eleven testifiers are
Golis.

any
Boys & Girls Club.
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MS. GOLlS: Aloha. My name is Annette Golis and I have nine grandchildren, and six that attend
of
Boys and Girls
to
clubs and seen
things to
especially for the
I look at the
that
we have. I can see
this one is
need of activities for our younger children, so
they are occupied
not bored. I know that
who's charge, and
staff--and I
It's recent. So
new at this.
her staff is doing
best that they can, but I feel
met
maybe
community--besides fundraisers
we can
do a little bit more
possible. I speak for myself and my children (my ohana) that it is a blessing to have this
open for my children, that need to work and be at ease for this program. Our kids have a small
area (a community center) tables to play small games and still have fun, as being young
children, until our working parents can pick their keikis up and not have to worry where they
are. At one time, I remember my husband would call me, "mom, gotta go pick this one up
there; and gotta go pick this one up there"; but now we don't worry because of this program.
Our future of Maui does begin with our keikis. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Akoni Golis.
MS. GOLlS: Thank you.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Pull it down. (NOTE: Referring to the microphone stand.)
MR. GOLlS: (NOTE: Trying to adjust the microphone stand.) What?
it

(NOTE: Referring to

stand.)

MS. MURRAY: How do you make it go down? (NOTE: Referring to the microphone stand.)
Greetings and Aloha, Maui County Council. My name is Leana Murray. I go to Lihikai
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School. I am eight years old. I go to the club because I get to do my homework and have
because I can meet new
means a
I also go to
I
we
you,
to go to stay out of
please support our
Members,

u,",,,uv.,,,

for

testifiers?

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Just ... more a comment than a
question; but thank you, Heidi, for you and your staff, what you do there. I know, you know,
my granddaughter goes there and she loves to go there. But I think the important part about the
Boys & Girls Club at Paukukalo is that they get to do their homework. And by the time their
parents pick them up, they can do other extracurricular activities; such as, going to softball
practice and other activities. So thank you for the work you guys do.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS.

KALEHUAWEHE: Thank you.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
guys

COUNCILMEMBER

Okay.
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MS.

Thank you.

MS.

Yeah.
PONTANILLA:

you.

Jonas

JOHNSON: Nice quote .... (chuckled) ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That was hard .... (chuckled) ...
MR. JOHNSON: It's a pretty common name--"Johnson", Duncan Johnson.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Johnson.
MR. JOHNSON: Thank you very much. I'm here with Keiki Kokua, and one thing I would like to
thank you for--and I noticed that really stands out with the Council members--is that you
continually give. And I know that giving really comes down to one thing and that's ... what's
there with your heart. So each and everyone of you, you give from your heart, otherwise, there
would be no giving ... and I would like to thank you for that. Keiki Kokua is an organization
that's, it touches ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

goes to
want
to go
when you have a
that has a broken home, that's a whole different thing;
it adds
momentous things to trying to reach
needs of that child. And with foster parents and Keiki
Kokua, that's what they're doing. They're supporting the foster parent
trying to
them
deal
child that has a broken heart many cases
has some needs that many, many
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people don't know how to meet; and so Keiki Kokua is supporting that (the foster parent) in
meet those needs.
they
come
children that they
homes, Keiki Kokua helps
those
those children can be anything
could be handicapped. They could be special-needs kids,
could be autistic. They could have things going on, which could be alcohol related or
drug related. They can be suicidal. So you're dealing with kids and broken families that have
... it takes a big heart to welcome them
to
these extra, the baggage with them
deal with that. So that's what Keiki Kokua is all about. And if you could find it within your
hearts and think of those people that have touched you in those ways to give to Keiki Kokua so
we could take those kids and put them up where maybe some of the other kids that you know
of--maybe your own--have gone, but have not had the challenges that these kids have. We
would appreciate it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier at this time? Thank you
very much.
MR. JOHNSON: Thank you.
MS. ST. JAMES: Good evening Council members and the community. My name is AIda St. James.
I'm the Executive Director of Keiki Kokua. As it states in our written testimony, we are
requesting first-time County funding for the program delivery of Keiki Kokua's programs in
the amount of $35,000. You know, today, we saw the MEO Youth Bank and we saw the Boys
and Girls Club. They made really nice presentations. And as I watched that, I was thinking,
wouldn't it be wonderful our kids could just come up here and tell you what Keiki Kokua has
meant to
to become whole again? Well, our kids
at

Seeing none,

MS. ST. JAMES:

you.
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PONTANILLA: Next testifier from Keiki Kokua.
THOMA: Good evening, Council and guests. My name is
also on
behalf of Keiki Kokua. My friends AIda and Jim--Alda just spoke--invited me
I assisted
the suitcase program. I don't know you know, but these kids have nothing. They
nothing, and they're carrying their things
plastic bags, a
of them.
so I went out to
of the kids, very
real estate
did a suitcase
for
I met a
nice kids. All of them seem very nice. And it was very powerful because ... I mean some of
the realtors are moved to tears when they hear these stories of these boys and girls who come
with nothing. They're just, you know, just the close on their back really. And so we collected
a bunch of suitcases for them. I'm here tonight just to ask you to give continued support to
Keiki Kokua. It's a terrific program. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none.
MS. GHANTOUS: Good evening, Council. My name is Vanessa Ghantous, and I'm speaking as an
adoptive parent and a foster parent. I became involved with Keiki Kokua because Jim and
AIda trained myself and my husband through the State program to become licensed foster
parents. We have had multiple placements in our home and I'm speaking on behalf of those
kids who are still in the system. When we had children in our homes, it was when Keiki Kokua
hadn't been started yet. So really it was just calling Jim and Aida at home and asking for
information or help or direction because a lot of times, we just really didn't know what to do. I
have had a number of situations where I had a two-month-old infant brought to my door
30 minutes notice
he was handed to me
a diaper. I was not given clothes. I was not
or a car seat; so I
to go

our
generosity and
intentions
County
provide to
get
them started. This is a really much-needed service
this community, and I hope you'll
consider supporting
this Budget. Thank you for your time.

- 37-

BUDGET AND FINANCE
Council of the County of Maui
Maui Waena Intermediate School Cafeteria

March 31, 2008

you. Members, any questions for

testifier?

your

County Council. I brought
aids
a
more interesting,
maybe. As you heard
AIda, because of confidentiality laws, I cannot bring foster kids
to give testimony on how
Kokua has helped
lives and
foster
lives. So instead
gonna represent 200 abused and neglected
in Maui
be coming
and out of the system within the next year.
over 150 that
demonstrate one of our many programs, which is the luggage drive that J.P. told you about.
This is how kids traveled between homes before Keiki Kokua provided luggage to foster
families. (NOTE: Dragged a trash bag.) This is how they travel now. (NOTE: Carried a
suitcase.) Keiki Kokua's many programs make a real difference in children's lives, one child
at a time. Our programs and our practical assistance ... all those programs of other foster
parent associations on other islands are all not funded by the State; but with your support, Keiki
Kokua can continue serving the most vulnerable kids on Maui and also become the voice of
foster families. Keiki Kokua could even get recognition and influence needed to make positive
changes at the State level. Give us a chance. Please do not leave us out of the Budget this year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good evening. Thank you for making us, you know, enlightening us
with the concerns from your clients. Earlier, a gentleman spoke about the suitcase drive. Is
there any other types of donations Keiki Kokua can use and, you know, I guess, to make the
aware on
we can help?

a

can

you ... (inaudible) ...
ST JAMES: No, we are it right now.... (chuckled) ...
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
JAMES:

go-getters,

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay,

HVILYB,,,,

you.

to get a

storage

you, Chair.

you. Members, any more questions? Seeing none,
MR.

JAMES:

you, agam.

take my bags and leave .... (chuckled) .. , Okay.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Cody Furomoto, Connie Meekhof, Kelsey Leval, Raeann Mukini, Kelly
Pearson, Samantha Albino, and Tatyana Nakihei .
. . . (Long pause, while the Boys and Girls Club group walks up to the podium.) ...

MS. MEEKHOF: Okay. We're the rest of the Boys and Girls Club. We thought we were all gonna be
up together, but sorry about that. Hi, I'm Connie. I'm the Unit Director for the Boys and Girls
Club ofMaui, Central club and the Kahekili Terrace extension. I have three kids from Central.
I have two from Kahekili Terrace. And I was gonna just ditto everything Heidi said but you
know what I'm gonna do? I'm just gonna let my kids speak. I'm gonna step out of the way.
Just gonna let you know we have 435 members at Central; 42 at Kahekili; and we average 99
youth that we serve on a given time a day; and with more funding from the County, we can
serve even more kids so keep
in mind. Also, MEO Transportation, that's how they get to
MEO picks
school; brings
over to us; picks

a
on
team.
team
is
Central Warriors. We got the name
Warriors by ... it represents not giving
and trying our best. Our team shows good sportsmanship and teamwork. OUf coach, John
____ , is a good coach because he helps us become better basketball players the
Some other things
we do is that we have excursions. One example is when we went
to
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Haleakala by the MEO Transportation. We went up, when we went
we saw ... we went
at
loves to go out
going to
attlentlve listening
support
MS.

my name is Samantha Albino.
11 years old
been going to
and Girls Club for seven months.
our Boys
Girls Club, we
Power-Hour,
is
homework or reading a book. We also have movie time, art, and we also play board games. I
enjoy coming to the Boys and Girls Club because it's a ... it keeps me out of trouble and it's a
safe place to meet new friends. I would like to thank you for supporting the Boys and Girls
Club because ifit wasn't for you guys, we wouldn't have stayed open. So, thank you.

MS. NAKIHEI: Aloha. My name is Tatyana Nakihei and I am 11 years old. I have been coming to
the Boys and Girls Club for two enjoyable years. I love coming to the Boys and Girls Club
because it's a place where I can hang out with my friends. I can get help with my homework. I
can watch movies and I can play games. I could practically do anything. I could even eat
snacks. I wouldn't be able to do any of that if it weren't for the Maui County Council. Thank
you for everything you did for the Boys and Girls Club. We appreciate it.
MR. FUROMOTO: Hi, my name is Cody Furomoto, and I am a member of Boys and Girls Club,
Central Maui. I love this place because it gives me everything I need; such as, Power-Hour, so
I can do all of my homework. They also have staff willing to play active sports with you; such
as, soccer, baseball, basketball, and flag football. There also multipurpose room for my
.uH"'UV'~ video games
board games. This
is every ... this place is
great.
H

•

out
to
minutes to do
gonna
show you what we do
the kids at
Okay? So, in front of you, you got three papers. On paper that's labeled No.1, I want you to
write a negative behavior or a negative
Something negative on Paper No.1. Just
humor me, okay. Go
me, okay.
on Paper No.2, I want you to write a positive
,,"~,~=rI
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behavior or a positive influence. So No.1 is negative; No.2 is positive.
paper No.3, I
Okay? So No. IS
No.2 is positive;
want
to
No.3 is
sorry. Am I going
going do is
too fast?

COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (chuckled) ...
MS. PEARSON: Okay. So now, you get one, two, and three. You going mix them up and line them
up horizontally across your table. Okay--and remember, I have no idea what order your papers
in. Now follow this carefully. This is how we teach our kids. Okay. You're going to
exchange Paper No.1 with the paper on its immediate right. Okay? If there's no paper to
immediate right, leave them alone. Don't touch it. Okay? You're going to exchange Paper
No.2 with the paper on its immediate left. Paper No.2; find the one on the left; exchange
them. If there's no paper, leave them alone. Okay. You're going to exchange Paper
No. 3--we're almost done--with the paper on its immediate right. Paper No.3; look to the
right; exchange them. Ifthere's no paper, leave them alone. Okay? Wave your hand over all
the papers. You guys looked so cute doing that. Wave your hand over all the papers and come
down on the paper in the middle. Okay? You're on the middle paper? Grab that; ball it up;
and throw it away. Okay. This is a behavior (an influence) that we want to eliminate or get rid
of.
away". (NOTE:

MS.

got two more

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:

o/paper
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MS. PEARSON: Wave your hand over both papers and come down on
one on the right. Grab
it
IS
or
it
to eliminate. Congratulations!
Boys and Girls Club ofMaui, you
negative behaviors and kept
positive. Okay?
we

COUNCILMEMBER
MS. PEARSON: Couple

... (chuckled) ...

to this activity.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You must have done something wrong. . .. (chuckled) ...
MS. PEARSON: Couple points to this activity. The kids nowadays, our kids nowadays have negative
and positive behaviors, and they're all mixed up. When kids come to the clubs, we don't know
what influences are in their lives. Just like I didn't know what words you had down. Okay?
But we--at the Boys and Girls Club of Maui--we wave our hands over them, usmg our
professional staff, quality programs, and the safe facilities that you build for us ...
MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MS. PEARSON: Okay. The reason why we did this is just to show you that we teach the kids by
having fun. So remember, when you support our clubs, you too wave your hands over our
kids' lives and the return on investment back to you are young people who make the right
choices. Thank you.

PONTANILLA: Maude?
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MS. CUMMING:
my name is Maude, Maude Cumming, and
the Director for Family
to ask
... (coughed) . . .
to ... (coughed) ...
assistance
... (cleared
. .. Over
$400,000 allocation to this fund. . .. (cleared throat) . .. Excuse me.
last go-around,
Family
Center received $45,000 of this $400,000 allocation .... (cleared throat) ...
this
we were able to place 42
Of
families that were placed between
2007 to December 2008 ... (cleared throat) ... out
42 families, 40 are still housed.
Most of, not most, a light portion of these families are disabled ... single disabled individuals.
So with the financial assistance and case management, we have housed a lot of families. We
stretch this money a lot. We share the funding with three other agencies--MEO, Women
Helping Women, and Ka Hale A Ke Ola--and the four of us agencies get together at least every
other month. We share information. We inform the clients that we will be reporting or sharing
the information, and get their permission, so that nobody double dips, and we keep tabs on that.
So I would encourage you to continue ... {end o/tape, start 2B at 7:40 p.rn.} . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Are you done?
MS. CUMMING: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier at this time? Seeing
none, thank you very much.
MS. CUMMING:

you.

We're
actually, usually,
consumers advocate for
usually have to speak
... (chuckled) ... and I'm lucky. You know, we get someone to emcee our events because it's
volunteers, so it's a real community thing. We really appreciate your help. I guess I won't
go into all
this,
I
say
Only about a
of
people who need
get
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health help) because of the shame traditionally associated
It wasn't that many
years ago
were
So
we do police
UUJlH'tS" too, along
our many education programs. Nobody was doing that so we picked
about
years ago, and we're doing about a day. And I think the last recruit class was
where nobody giggled for
first
when we talk about
health. So it takes a
of
education for
whole community but ... and that's why we a have poster contest every year
County.
have almost a thousand children countywide
through
grade) who enter and they get a mental health curriculum
school. Some children get it
year after year because their teachers and schools are entering, and this takes away some of the
shame and embarrassment around mental health--the word "mental"--so that hopefully, they
will get help later or help their friends to get help later they need
So anyway, we have
many, many projects. I'm happy to answer any questions. We're right in the white pages.
HH.dU';U

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Colleen. Members, any questions for the testifier this evening?
Seeing none, thank you, again.
MS. O'SHEA WALLACE: Everyone needs a break.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Cynthia Morihara? Members, as soon as Cynthia is through with her
testimony, we'll take a recess. Cynthia?
MS. MORIHARA: Okay. Good evening, Chair Pontanilla and Members of the Budget Committee.
My name is Cynthia Morihara.
with the Mental
Association of Maui.
Mental
Health Association (now
Health America) is the
has
rights of
people

- 44-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
Maui Waena Intermediate School Cafeteria

March 31, 2008

Thank you, Cynthia. Members, any questions for

"'_,"'U,.AJ',~'~

VICTORINO: Whoa!

to testify tonight. So you can come
at
Chair would appreciate that. This meeting is recess .... (gavel) ...
RECESS:

7:45 p.m.

RECONVENE:

7:58 p.m.

to

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: ... (gavel) . .. The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Thank you for the short recess that we had. The next testifiers are Eric Brown-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --followed by Elaina and Julie Aqcoaili.
MR. BROWN: Good evening, Mr. Chair and Council members. I come this evening to testify on
behalf of the MEO Head Start. Along with me are other parents as well as staff and teachers.
Basically,
like to thank you for funding thus far the MEO Head Start program. Awesome
program! This is my, my
has
in MEO Head Start for two years.
Next
starts
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parents. It helps me be a
stress
nights;
nights, where
teachers.
month, there's a parent/teacher meeting.
our children. We're always ... even during
meetings, we
song so we can go
and be better parents: to teach
and sing then
our kids; find out
they're
learning; what we can help
on;
So it's. . .
it . . .
it helps us be
more involved in our kids
Next year, my son's going to kindergarten.
ready, you
know. He's ... go, go to kindergarten already, you know. There's no hesitation and he ...
nothing there because, you know, during public school, you can't always be there. So it helps
you know what's going on in your child's life and know and have the confidence to send them
off to, you know, public school, preschool.
Third is the teachers and the staff. The teachers are excellent. My son's teacher is here with
me, Ms. Angel. She's--her name says it all. ... (chuckled) . .. So you know, the teachers,
they just ... they get to know the children; they learn to love the children. Even the ... I, last
year, I was the Secretary on the Parent Teacher Association and this year I'm Policy Council
Chairman, and we ...
MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MR. BROWN: I get to learn all the aspects ofMEO, as a whole company, and also MEO Head Start.
Where the money's going.
always getting calls. They're letting me know when they're
hiring new teachers
money's going for
not money that's just
to

MR.BROWN:
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA:
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BROWN: Yeah. I was at Lahaina last
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA:

so

said this is the second year. First

MR. BROWN: Yeah, this is my first son. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And is there, when you talk about parent involvement, what do you,
what are some oftheir activities--besides the families--on a daily basis?
MR. BROWN: Well, like for me, I work during the day, so I can't volunteer too much. I know about
the meetings beforehand so I'm able to, you know, arrange things with my work and whatnot.
But for parents who work at night, they are more than welcome to come and volunteer at the
school during the day--go on fieldtrips and things like that. If they work during the day, there's
things like the male involvement, family fun nights, and whatnot that are scheduled after work
and things. So there's really not too much excuse on why you couldn't be involved in your
kid's life, so there's things always happening.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And of course, I hope by now you know
bus"?

MS.

to sing "the wheel's on

AQCOAILI: Good evening. My name is Elaina
I graduated
Start program,
but that was five years ago. I am now nine years old and
younger sister,
will be
as I
You
graduating this year. She loves going to school just as
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support

Start program so
other younger sister,
may be able to go there
days ago, we
a special woman.
name is Ms.
She was a
teacher. I
your support continues
Head Start. She was my
this program because we
more teachers that love Head Start
how she did. MEO
Start says
our parents are our
teachers.
is true but
ones I had helped me
early education. The Maui County Council is doing a great job
helping
and us
getting a
start
education.
you
a good night.
PONTANILLA:

you,

' - ' H U H ....

Next testifier?

MS. J. AQCOAILI: Good evening, Maui County Council members. My name is Julie Aqcoaili, and
I'm proud to say ... (cried) ... that I am an advocate for the Head Start program .
. . . (cried) ... I am the proud parent of a Head Start graduate and one currently enrolled in the
program. There are 13 Head Start centers on Maui alone, and each one could not be operated
without the continued assistance that you (the County Council) has provided over the years.
What I like most about the Head Start program is that the parents or guardians are encouraged
to be highly involved. That includes shared decision making with the teaching staff on
curriculum, program development, and even goals for your own child. Your financial help to
the programs has assisted low-income families and children with special needs or disabilities
get a fighting chance with early education. Over the many years, the Maui County Council
members have changed but one thing still remains the same. That is the great and
much-needed support that you have given. This wonderful program must continue into the
future and reach out to every child anxiously waiting to start school. So I stand
before you
say
Mahalo.

we
across
nation
it is something
the students we spoke with had awesome projects that were awe-inspiring and very
encouraging. We wish every EAST student got the opportunity to feel how inspirational the
atmosphere was.
experience did not only teach us how to incorporate the available
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technology within the community but taught us how to apply the values necessary when
a'
working
a
most especially
life.
has
opportunity that I will never forget. On behalf of the EAST students, we would
support our youth program. I believe we students are
making use
you have provided for us.
you.
Seeing none,

PONTANILLA:
you.
you very much
being here.
MR. TYAU: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Blaine McCammack followed by Kapono Naole.

MR. McCAMMACK: Thanks for all your generous support. EAST has given me so much--a home
at school, a very nice classroom, and my trip to Arkansas was great! I got to see the other
EAST Conference participants and I learned new things such as internet programming. I had
such great ... I had such a great time and life experiences there. The extracurriculars in EAST
are very good and I had a great time. EAST has given me the confidence to speak today, and
improve my grades, and stay in school.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Thank you, again.
Kapono Naole followed by Corey Kawaiea.
one group.

WARD: I

to

Yeah, okay.
MR. WARD:

you very
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PONTANILLA: All
MR.

on
I am speaking
we are asking for you support for
Hawaiian Kamalii,
Kamalii, Inc. is a broad range
programs that we have
down at the club. They include: afterschool programs; paddling programs; our partnership
IS a
school down at
canoe
also our
program,
one-of-a-kind summer program. Tonight,
asking your support for our summer program.
This summer program is 12 years old; it was started
1995. It's free of charge. It's a
seven-week summer program with over 150 participants aged 10-18. The funds that we're
asking for are to fund the staff of this program. This is a leadership program; and that staff
includes, not only some staff with our experts down at the club, but also the keiki, also the kids
who have come through the program. In later years, they become leaders in the program and
they actually organize the program for our organization. The grant money we're asking for is
really a small portion of what we have down with Hawaiian Kamalii. We have other private
donations that greatly actually exceed the ... the, what we're asking for. These include: funds
for insurance, our facility, our canoes, and our staff. We also partner with other nonprofit
organizations for assistance including Hui Malama; Hale Ike; and, of course, MEO
Transportation for busing. Our program (the summer program) focuses on leadership; mentor
training; teambuilding; development of ohana; water safety and development of ocean skills;
understanding the island living (malama aina); a wellness program; song, chant, and dance; and
other community-service activities. I'm gonna allow the other folks--who are here, who are
leaders in our summer program--to give you a little bit more insight into what we actually do
be available
questions
so
okay.
during
summer.

come
so
get away
was one of the things I enjoyed
most is
all these people
places. I started at eight years old; grew
and then ... had a County program, I decided to
become a leader. I think summertime, most
reasons, most of
kids are from
Upcountry and they
MEO Bus to come down. And well I live downtown so I just
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anyway.
come down and they'd
all these skills. One of
biggest memories I
is . . .
I was 13 years old
the projects was we
our own canoe paddle, and we ended
doing
I remember
year I
paddle--I had a paddle before that but it got stolen--so I had this new one
I made. I took it
to State's
won a gold
so I was really happy. I was like "whoa I got a gold
.n, dada, dada"
that's what
about. A
the things that I've done
this
of skills I need to
as a, going through pressured situations. I
program has
me a
was taking care of kids who were ages from like 10-14 and a lot of that stuff I
my
resume, and it helped me to get a good job.
happy! I work for the Neighborhood Place of
Wailuku. They were really happy with my resume and most ofthe stuff that was on there was
because of this program and how good it was. So I'm asking you to support us. Thank you.
AU,,"'...

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next testifier?
MS. KAW AIEA: Aloha, Council members. My name is Kamalei Kawaiea and I've been paddling for
Hawaiian Canoe Club for like ten years. I've gone through the program. I start at ten. I've
gone through it for four years and then I became a leader, and it's a great experience because
you get to see both sides of being a student in it and also being able to plan out activities for the
kids who are younger. It is a safe environment to come to. It is like a summer program and it's
a great way to stay active because you can also become a paddler after the program is done.
And while you're out there, you're able to learn about Hawaiian language, Hawaiian culture. If
you've gone through the program before, you get another chance to learn about
So it's
always in your head and we're always reminding you of where you come from, and it is
as paddling to
educational and
at
We
fieldtrips on
-'-'Wlnu, Kahoolawe,
was going to
because

sites.
Kahoolawe, Molokai, and Lanai. They also teach us
to give back to our aina, by "'-"VUJl;;
out the farmers out
Keanae. We
clean their taro patches. Another big thing, and it
was very good, that we have done was. . we helped keep the homeless stay
of the beaches.
Because, as you know, Hawaiian Canoe
is on the harbor
there's a lot
homeless
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beaches
such an eyesore.
I
to
you
you. Next testifier?
MS.

Aloha,
My name is Vaaia
I've
and been a part of
Hawaiian Kamalii program for one year. The Kamalii program is an
educational program, which teaches kids about our Hawaiian culture. It's a
experience that
from what they teach you there, and then,
kids can go to stay out of trouble and you learn a
yeah.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And ... Mr. Ho?
MR. HO: Respectable Council members, my name is Daniel Kamakanaolo Ho. I've been paddling
for the past four years and I stand here today honored to represent Hawaiian Canoe Club and
the Hawaiian Kamalii program. I haven't ... as I've mentioned, I've been paddling for the
past four years; three of which I have been a leader for the program and the first year, I was a
member. I learned so many different values through Hawaiian Canoe Club and the Hawaiian
Kamalii program. Many of which include "haa haa" (or humility), "ahonui" (or patience), you
know. Many different values, which are based in the Hawaiian culture and through this
program, not only was I able to learn all these different values but I was also able to discover
who I was as an individual and make new friends and just become not so isolated from the rest
it's just
I was not really interested sports, you know,
paddling started
to
it

I

MR. WARD: Speaking.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you for being here. It certainly is nice to
They
get a
need? What's
amount of funding
are asking
"-',".LJ.lYJl.LJ~H.LJ-'-J,"'-

$22,500.

BAlSA: $22,500

grantee

be?

It would be Hawaiian ... "...... uuC>. . ,

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Hawaiian Kamalii, Inc.?
MR. WARD: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: It is an incorporated nonprofit.
MR. WARD: It is.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: On its own?
MR. WARD: It is. Our ... Hawaiian Kamalii, Inc. is dba Hawaiian Canoe Club.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay. And the other thing is, obviously,
stands now. So
be an uU'.rV'H

is not

as it

is correct.

MS.

been

1J"\.nU.'H!o',

I was

overall.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And so how
are you

are you? What grade are you in, and

17.

MS.
COUNCILMEMBER ~H'-'LJ.LjLL"V'

Okay.

are you,

going to

~V'HHL"~

program?

MS. KAWAIEA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. KAWAIEA: I ...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Go ahead.
MS. KA W AIEA: I want to become a ... (end of tape, start 3A at 8:28 p.rn.) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
continue. Mahalo.

Okay.

Well, I congratulate all of you and encourage you to

MS. KAWAIEA: Thank you.

being here

Members, any more questions? Seeing none, thank
by Marilyn
Barry Takahashi

agam,

one,
as a
doesn't have any paid members. Or by being creative
register
and taxing park facility users; ocean activities might be one area to tax; it could be events; and
leagues that use our facilities, you know. I know it's an honor system when we ask them to
report back what
make on the revenue, you know, from using the facilities and resources.
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Another idea
be to set aside a
that maybe a percentage of what is generated
usage
can be used towards
this .
. . . because there is a
over
this is a proactive step
as
as putting something forward, one of my colleagues (Shane Duldulao) does have plans to
construct
approximately $30,000 from the ground up. And you know, just being on
Molokai earlier this ... or last weekend for
Laike
you could
imagine one of
these structures at each one
your areas. Imagine, it as a classroom (a nontraditional
classroom) where coaches--like myself and other coaches that
here because they just
finished practice--would be able to use
the community. So thank you very much. I offer
those solutions and offer to answer any questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Takahashi.
Seeing none, thank you for being here.

Members, any questions for the testifier?

MR. TAKAHASHI: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Marilyn Yuen along with Lauren Silva, Lisa Silva, and Will
Stack.
MS. YUEN:
Marilyn Yuen and I currently teach at the newest school on Maui (Pomaikai
Elementary School) and I'm here, I guess, to testify on behalf of the Maui Arts and Cultural
Center. You know, the MACC is a vital part of our community, our County, and our ... and
for our children. They do support education. Besides the wonderful events and concerts
they offer professional development for the teachers
other educators
prnnr""PT ourselves
to
arts

name is
I
arts integration program at
Pomaikai tl{~mt~m,lrv
It has helped me to do work with others
thinking skills.
Please support the MaUl Arts
Cultural ,--,"'An".
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MS. LISA SILVA:

my name is Lisa Silva.
I

they've been able to
is American
the MACC has
you

Sign Language;
been able to offer us,
very

MR. STACK: Hi, my name is Will Stack.
actually Lauren's teacher, so
very proud
job
she did tonight. Congratulations, Lauren! I am a first-year teacher, so I am learning how to
teach and learning how to shape minds for the future; and the MACC gives me the skills to do
that. So I want to say thank you for supporting them and all they do.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? I'd just like to make
this comment. I have a grandson that goes to Pomaikai ... (chuckled) ... and you guys do a
wonderful job. Thank you. Thomas Douma followed by Penelope Olson.
MR. DOUMA: I feel like the oldest testifier here yet this evening .... (chuckled) ...
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (laughter) ...
MR. DOUMA: My name is Tom Douma.
on the Board of Directors of the Na Hale 0 Maui
Community Land Trust. You've already seen Dave Ward here this evening, who's one of our
Board members; and I think Cesar Gaxiola is gonna speak on another issue; so I've been asked
to speak just on
Na
0 Maui
We want to

our
revenues only
though we've
working for a year or two--at
project when we finally actually place our constituent families
property. So this is why
we need for support to keep ourselves going
we actually get to that
So once again,
thank you for your support
past
we hope we have it in
future. Thank you.
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name?
I sort

take

I get, so

COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (laughter) ...
PONTANILLA:
Penelope Olson?

I really screwed that one up.

. .. (chuckled) . ..

The next testifier is

MS. OLSON: Aloha. I'm here to represent the Mental Health Association. Colleen Wallace and
another lady spoke earlier. I am a new Board member. I've been collaborating with Colleen
and the Mental Health Association for probably about four years. I sat on the CCC
(Community Children Council's Board) for three years for Maui County down in the Kahului
area and ... some representative in Hana side as well. We collaborated on several ...
Molokini Unit comes to mind as one of them to reopen, reestablish. My son has autism. And
being that, at age three, he stopped eating and having bowel movements. It became apparent to
me of what kind of resources are out there, and I found out about Molokini Unit as well as
through his Dr. McGuffy that is connected with the Molokini Unit was his psychiatrist for
many years ... since he was three until recent. So I will ... became involved and Colleen was a
strong force the Mental
Association and reopening; and I know she does also a lot of
golf because I
for the parking on
Mercedes golf. ... (chuckled) ...

College
as a result, we now
160 nursing students. We've
graduations
December and May of both practical nurses and registered nurses. Just in case you think the
job's done, I gave you a diagram that shows
Maui has the fewest nurses per capita of any
other island. We have 7 per 1,000 compared to 9.5 on Oahu.
second diagram shows
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population of Maui County is projected to increase
percent by
year 2020,
to increase 29,000--or 29
shows you the lack of nurses projected
year 2020, Maui's going to need 293 new nurses. If MCC graduates 80, we
we're going to need. I also have a diagram at the bottom
page that shows
population aging and it shows--this diagram was made 2005--and it showed
at
to make it 2020, we're
age
our population was 54.
you add 15 years to
age
gonna, in 2020, the median age for our population will be between 65 and 70 years old,
when people need nurses.
you tum it back, you funded not only nursing but you also funded
dental for us; and I'm happy to report that in November, the Board of Regents at the University
approved the Associate Degree Dental Hygiene Program and we will start it. Our students will
be admitted in the Fall and start in January of '09. It's very important because if you look at
the diagram below, it shows that on Maui, we have almost three times as many cavities for a
five year old as they have on the mainland. We also know that dental periodontal disease,
which is what dental hygienists prevent in their work, causes heart disease, diabetes, and
preterm labor. Our Medicaid patients on Maui have only one place to go and that's the Maui
Oral Health Center, which you've helped support. I wanted, I showed you the diagram that
shows we're up from 300 visits per month to almost ... it has 700 visits per month. So far,
we've had more than 6,000 patient visits at the Maui Oral Health Center, which you have
supported. And then, if all those things aren't enough to convince you, healthcare is where the
jobs are. If you look, a home health aide, Maui pays almost $15 an hour. These are their, this
is from the new AARP Newsletter. Dental hygienist and nurses are not only the highest paid
but some of the most high demand jobs, not only on the mainland but on Maui, and $35 an
is an average salary for these ... this workforce.
you've
support this
I am
to
our
UUAAU"-

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: $10,000 more to go to Vegas.
how to keep them
H'VAUV.
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using, allowing our own students to go ... get

MS. JOHNSON: Well
to

work you

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA:
MS. JOHNSON:

you.

PONTANILLA:
you, Nancy.
more questions for the
thank you, again. Nerissa
and Frank DeFeliccia.

Seeing none,

MS. IMADA:
my name is Nerissa Imada. I'm a freshman at Saint Anthony Junior Senior High
School. This is my first year in the Focus Maui Nui Youth Alliance program. It is a program
funded, or part of MEDB. We learn more about our community and what we can do to be part
of it. We also have guest speakers come. Actually, Mike Molina came and he was very
inspirational in what he talked about. And we have different, they show us different career
opportunities and what we can do to stay on Maui and how we can help Maui. I'm only one of
the students that are allowed or ... I've been accepted to the program. If you can continue to
support it so that me and my fellow members and even more students can come and learn more
about Maui and how we can make it a better place for the future. We've gone to different
locations. We meet once a month on Saturdays; it's an all-day program. We've gone to the
hospital. We've gone to Monsanto. We've gone to Akaku. Our theme for this year is
"Science and Technology in our everyday lives", and how we can apply that, and how it's
important. So please continue to
us so that we can make it a better place on Maui
a
you.

PONTANILLA:
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Chair.

COUNCILMEMBER

MOLINA: Chair.
Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
good evening. I just want to say how impressed I am with both
of you and thank you guys for giving up your weekend time to learn more about the community
and see, and look for different ways how you can help. So I feel very comfortable about our
future with youngsters like you who are going to be our future leaders. I just want to say thank
you.
MS. IMADA: Thank you.
MR. DeFELICCIA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Just a quick question for both of you. I understand that just a few
months ago, there were a bunch of teenagers like yourself--who were involved in the
sustainability project for 2050--and they asked the youth, how many of them thought they
stay on Maui. I'm just curious to know what your answers would be,
or
on
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You know, none
those kids said
So I guess,

are

our
are thinking.
home. . .. (chuckled) . .. Bye-bye.
PONTANILLA:

you.

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I have one question.
"--'~jLr1-'-n..

PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Medeiros?

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman, just for the young lady. You were saying
the different things you were doing and-MS. IMADA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --I thought I heard you say "kahu"?
MS. IMADA: Oh! Akaku Television.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, Akaku?
MS.

UYH ' . L n

Yeah.
some

more questions? Seeing none,
Chaney.
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RAIKES:
and distinguished
My name is
Members
Gail Raikes and
the Program Manager for the Maui
Support Services'
Head
Start program. We have been fortunate to receive funding from the County for
Fiscal Year
2007
current Fiscal Year 2008, enabling our program to enhance our health
related services to infants and toddlers and
We
greatly
appreciate
Year 2009. Today, I
be presenting testimony on
mothers participating
our program as she was unable to attend
behalf of one of
hearing.
Good evening, my name is Tammy Kuulei Barido. I would like to share with you how Maui
Family Support Services has touched my life. My family and I have benefitted greatly from the
services we have received through this great organization. I've come to love the staff at Maui
Family Support Services. They're like my own ohana. I've had the privilege of being a
participant at Maui Family Support Services for four-and-a-half years. I have learned many
positive parenting skills and to believe in myself and much more. My children have benefitted
from the Early Head Start and the Kupukupu Child Development program. They have learned
social skills that have prepared them for school. I've incorporated the value of "olelo maikai ",
which means good and proper communication; and the importance of "malama", being able to
discipline my children in positive ways. Maul Family Support Services has encouraged me to
be a better parent and friend. I'm very happy and proud to be a part of the Maui Family
Support Services ohana and what it stands for. Please continue to fund this program because it
has changed my life. Maul Family Support Services has taught me positive parenting skills, a
privilege I
not experience in
childhood. I would like other families to have
to

PONT ANILLA:
you. Members, any questions for
you very
for being here

- 62-

testifier? Seeing none,

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
Maui Waena Intermediate School Cafeteria

March 31, 2008

by
MS.

Aloha, Council members, and thank you so
your patience
you've
a long haul
it
I
wanted to
you very
the support you've given the Maui Arts and Cultural Center. It's been a cornerstone of our
stability. It's a small part of our Budget, but it's really important in terms of how we're able to
both serve this community as well as generate additional funds. And we take our responsibility
to this community very seriously. I was pleased that some of the teachers from Pomaikai
School were able to be here tonight. Education has always been part of who we are, and it's no
surprise, or I think it's because of the arts and cultural center and the people that carne before
me. I can't take credit. But it's because of the arts and cultural center and our professional
development for teachers that we've gone further than a lot of similar organizations, not only in
Hawaii but across the country; and that's why Pomaikai (Hawaii's first public school with arts
integrated education) is here and not elsewhere. We're also very pleased that we are committed
to serving all of Maui County. We take programs out to the more remote communities. We
bring kids into the center. Just last year alone, we served about 275,000 people at the center.
Of that number, 54,000 carne through our education programs; free programs; artist in
communities; taking performances out to the various communities. That's something that we'll
not only continue to do. Right now, we have two free performances for the community. Next
Festival in June; the Ukulele Festival in
year, we're adding a third. There's the Ki
October; and we
be adding a Storytelling Festival as well based on traditional Hawaiian
storytelling. We're also
It was
to

PONTANILLA: Daryl Yamamoto?

Ware [sic]?
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MR. ENOMOTO: Aloha and Good evening, Chair Pontanilla and County Council members. My
name IS
me
year.
Maui Bicycle
We're a local grassroots bicycling advocacy group and I
talk about a couple of things.
has
a
back to Page 5-3 in the PaialHaiku CIP Plan, again,
$400,000 appropriation of County funds to ... for the Baldwin
Bikeway Greenway.
We do not, again, support this project being funded. I know last year, you folks were able to
drop the funding down to $100,000. And again, the Administration is trying to kinda put the
cart before the horse. It's not supported by the bicycling community. Again, we see little to no
benefit for local cyclists as this is more of a facility that would be used by the commercial
downhill tour industry. The downhill tour study has not been completed of the $250,000 that
was appropriated last year. It has gone out to bid. I believe that bid was awarded but the study
has not either commenced or even gotten toward completion. So we have no idea what will
corne out of that study and what is the best course of action, to go forward. The National parks
have not finalized what plans that they have for bicycle tours within the Haleakala National
Park. And also the Council itself was given the authority to regulate commercial bicycle tours
on State facilities; I don't believe that that's gone anywhere also. So there's a lot of things in
play that need to happen before we commit more funds to a project that not only is ... the
$100,000 last year; but starting off in the Apana Administration, there was $500,000 floated.
So at $600,000 with nothing to show for it; while on the other side, we still have two projects
that have not been completed. Again, the North Shore Greenway, which is to go from Kahului
to Paia, only two phases that are complete. There is another section between Paia and Baldwin
Park that's supposed to be constructed
path
.
to
.J.".Uu.u,-'u;

MR. JENSEN:
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And the last thing I have is actually in Kahului-Wailuku Page 5-8, the
.... ",'",v,,, , who's
is
is somewhat bicycling
because
ofa
area or .. .(end of tape, start 3B at 8:58 p.rn.). .. where they've cut
there, and the
the stumps still stick out the shoulder, where bicyclists ride, which force
Wiliwili trees, a
the travel lane. The road condition is
There's trees on
downhill
... more
travel ... or near the travel
area.
is a
side, heading to Waihee, that's
high-priority item that could be moved up, even better yet; but make sure that it stays funded.
There's a $250,000 appropriation this year.
that could be increased, and making sure it's a
higher priority in the 2010 Fiscal Year Budget, that is really overdue on that. So that's all I have
to say. You'll be seeing me at the next couple of Council meetings, and you may be hearing from
some ofthe cycling community on some of the things I spoke about tonight.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Walter. Members, any questions for the testifier this evening?
Thank you very much for being here.
MR. ENOMOTO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Alethea Lee followed by Cesar Gaxiola.
MS. LEE: Good evening, County Council members. My name is Alethea Lee. I'm the Parent
Involvement Facilitator for Maui Family Support Services' Early Head Start. I am here to read
testimony on behalf of one of our parents that was unable to attend tonight.

name IS
Cesar Gaxiola,
afternoon, I
provided to you a letter from one of our Board members,
Freitas Gorman. She's
supporting our request to Mayor Tavares for
repairs to our balcony that suffered damage
the earthquake
October 15, 2006. I just
to add to the letter that the J. Walter
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Cameron Center has
service for over 35 years. Currently, we house 18 resident
agencIes;
in 2007
we provided
facilities
223
groups,
agencies, and clubs the community.
resulted in 940 meetings over the 1
period,
so that's definitely a facility that is used on a daily basis by three or four different groups
are not housed there.
groups are from Lahaina, from Kihei, from
Wailuku,
So you can
over. We even have folks
come over from Lanai and Molokai as
see that's a facility
serves the community for
past 35 years. So I wanted to make
myself available to see if there was any questions; but at the same time, I wanted to ask you for
your support and ... supporting our request of $183,000 for the 2009 Budget.
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Baisa?

Thank you, Cesar. Members, any questions for the testifier? Member

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes, 940 meetings in one year. You're almost as bad as the County
Council. The repairs that you need done, how urgent is it that this be done?
MR. GAXIOLA: As soon as possible.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Why?
MR. GAXIOLA: The earthquake was on October 15, 2006, so that's a year and six months. Our
structural engineer asked us to do the repairs within two or three months if we can, but we
don't have the funds to do that. One of the reasons for that is also the balcony where the
damage is is right
the meeting facilities area,
we have a
on a daily
basis.

now IS
Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA:

you.
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MR.

Thank
you,

more

MS. PEBRIA: Good evening.
to speak on
Support Services. I
are our future.
Services, they prove that point.
have two children and
have been active
a
Home-Based or Center-Based Program, Early Head Start. The staff helped me understand
child development, physical and mental health, safety and nutrition regarding my family and
children. I believe I developed a very good bond with my children because I had a lot more
knowledge. The staff at Maui Family Support Services provides you with good, fast, and
100-percent service. I feel not only do they do their job as best they can but they do it from
their heart. My children's eyes light up every time I bring up Maui Family Support Services.
That only shows me that they are good because children know one thing--good sense between
good and bad. My daughter's three years old and she graduated from Maui Family Support
Services Home-Based Early Head Start. And my son is nineteen months now and he attends
the Center-Based program, and I think it's a very good program because it helps a lot of
families. I just want to ask you guys to please support this program. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I got one question.

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
program?

So

both Federal funding
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not sure.

MS.
COUNCILMEMBER
MS.PEBRIA:

said

H.LL.'.iJ.LJil.'-'-'U

... I'm sorry.

was some Federal

J.UU.UHJl5

it's ...

not sure

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. PEBRIA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: All right. Well, mahalo for your testimony.
MS. PEBRIA: Thank you. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? If not, thank you.
MS. PEBRIA: She could ... is it okay that she clears that up for me?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: It's up to the Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure, go ahead.
MS.

Yeah,

sorry.
answer

MS. RAIKES: Yes, it does.
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COUNCILMEMBER ~nL..LPJLd
MS.

~~LL"--'-AJ:

Okay, thank you.

Thank

<'-'L"'VU.

Tom Cannon not here? Rita Barreras?

the Director of
MS. BARRERAS: Aloha and Good evening. My name is Rita Barreras.
Long
Care Partnership. I also assumed another role this last year, which is Chair of the
Maui Health Initiative Task Force. So I was able to get our long-term-care home and
community-based services issues on that agenda, which has been great. But I want to thank
you. The County of Maui has been funding the partnership in two ways. One is a smaller grant
for $20,000. It's for the Volunteer Caregiver Pilot Project and the other one is called Maui
Community Care Core, and they both appear under the Office of Economic Development line
in the Mayor's Budget. So thanks for the support that you've been giving us. The partnership
did submit a request to the Mayor to request two things. That, one, that we collapse or
consolidate the two lines under Maui Community Care Core. We have had almost three years
experience now, running the Volunteer Caregiver Pilot Project Initiative, and that is focused on
nonfamily caregivers. You hear about family caregivers a lot, but there are people without
caregivers. So we experimented and did an outreach training and recruitment effort to try and
find volunteer caregivers, and we managed on average to recruit, train, and educate about
80 nonfamily volunteers per year. So we feel like we've proven it and now it's time to just
integrate it as part of our overall Maui Care Core Initiative. The other thing is that we asked for
a request of $300,000 and
Mayor did include a $275,000 request, so we would really
greatly appreciate it
did
ur",nU>rl to

came
integrate here
and I walked away feeling like "we're ahead of the curve", you know. So that was a good way
to come back and say "thank you so much for letting us experiment". You're letting us, you
know, try some innovative things. We found that these classes that we're offering--
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MR.
MS. BARRERAS: --you
we were sort
curve
So I appreciate your
be glad to answer any questions. There is one specific project Hana, I
I
just? I know
going over my time, but this is really important. We had
Aging
Retrofit Project
was
our partnership
collaboration
Mamo (the senior center) and
nonprofit director, Rick Rutiz.
Pang led a
research team to look at ... of the work that the students did to install ramps, put in grab bars,
and raise toilet seats, what difference did it make to preventing falls of elders. Well Dr. Pang's
research team found that it did prevent falls. It's a cost-effective model; and this month
March, it was published in the Hawaii Medical Journal. It's just wonderful. Anyway, if you
have any questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you, again, Rita. Shalei DeFrancia? Vaaia Kauhaahaa? Tina [sic] ... Tema Watson?
MR. WATSON: Hello. Good evening. My name is Tema and I'm here on behalf of the Community
Work Day Program. I would like to say thank you for your support and encouragement that
was given to the Community Work Day Program for many, many years. Every part of the
County benefits from this volunteer-based action program, complimenting services of the
County. The quick response and highway beautification teams remove dangerous and
unsightly appliances, tires, batteries, and debris dumped along our roadways, beaches, and
parks. Adopt
groups, individuals, and organizations are recruited and oriented to their sites
given tools
to get
job
I
to

continue
PONTANILLA: Thank you.

questions

evening?
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COUNCILMEMBER H""'-'"'-"'-"Ln.'-/

One question.

PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
I
wanted to ask you. Since you
COUNCILMEMBER
Mahalo, Mr.
sometimes cars along
Highway, is there
do, you know, remove ... like appliances
folks?
any
sharing of funds by Solid Waste to
MR. WATSON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: They do?
MR. WATSON: We do have sharing.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Besides equipment, do they help you with some kind of funding?
MR. WATSON: We do have $5,000.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. All right. Thank you for the work you do and thank you
for your testimony.
MR. WATSON: Thank you.
PONTANILLA: Thank

Members, any more questions? Seeing none,

you, agam,

son
an awesome
as a single mom on
one income, working as a
are no day-off benefits;
are no sick benefits;
there are no holiday benefits. So when
miss $110 a day because your employer is closed,
that is ... it's really
to make that up and it also sets you behind. And what I, what I
have done ... (sigh) ... as it's been a great humbling experience--a learning experience--you
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ever heard of payday loans? Go online, trying to make your ends meet, and click--we'll give
$300. Okay.
Not realizing
on
$300 is $75
300 percent 'H~.H~Y
finance
on $300).
a
I get paid weekly. When you
payday loans
MEO,
that's all your paychecks every week. ... (cried) . .. Because
instead letting me fall behind and get to a place
service, they were able to give me a hand
where I could not get back out. Shelter, there's no room at the shelter. Where would I be I
car for a van .
wasn't able to have the assistance that I have? I'd probably
. . . (cried) . . .
beach sounds
a pretty good idea. And ... it's because of you guys and
able to stand here tonight. My two
what you guys do. . .. (cried) . .. It's the reason why
children are my support and that's an that I have, and it's because of you that we're able to have
a roof. And your ... (cried) ... that is so important because as a temp-hire, I've worked a year.
. . . (cried) ... I have not missed one day of work because that's so vital, every day of work. I
even had surgery scheduled; went to work half-day; went to have surgery; and was back at
work the next day. And so thank you guys for giving MEO that opportunity to help people like
me, single moms that are just trying to do the best that they can to raise two children on her
own ... (cried) ... and thank you for this time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. ASTRONOMO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA:

more

MS. ASTRONOMO:
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Jeff Reiss?

none,
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Council members. My name is Jeff Reiss,
CEO of a small high-tech
to
on
Maui -'-''''lHHYlH.'''
on
Development Board.
you for your support of Maui Economic Development Board.
diversify
economy of Maui, we founded Peletex. Actually, it's been nine years and we've
filed patents. We have U.S. Patents
have been awarded.
because of
support
Maui
Development Board, bringing together opportunities, we've been able to
secure some
funds that came
Hawaii Technology Development Venture.
Additionally, I'm aware of the fact that the Department of Energy has named the State
Hawaii as the state where they want to demonstrate energy independence.
is right in
with what our company does and it's ... the support from Maui Economic Development Board
to diversify the economy that has really helped us. So thank you for your support, from Maui
Economic Development Board.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
MR. REISS: Do you have any questions?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifier? Thank you, again, for being here.
MR. REISS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members,
evening is Vincent Mina.

last member ... or the last person to sign up for testimony this

please,

5

our mISSIon IS
education and
and we've been holding educational events since 200l.
Board member of Maui County Farm Bureau;
the Secretary. I became a Board
because of being a little disappointed with how the agriculture ... how agriCUlture was being
supported here on the island, through the
Bureau, so I got
Farm Bureau to see if I
UH,'H'U"'"
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could make a difference

Bureau. One of the things that concerns me right now,
to
tune
Vlsitor
getting so
and we're getting
Bureau's getting) about $400,000 or plus. would like to
see
flipped around possible. I also would like to see Farm Bureau be
accountable
organic agriculture be
to, as they say, "supporting all forms of agriculture". That they,
given a
playing field. We've been, basically, been thrown bones over
years,
I
just to say
understand
not to make any form Agriculture wrong.
like the idea, like . . . and when you eat this food tonight, these are donations from organic
farmers within our organization and ... ours being one of 'em. That you ... we can be eating
our food in confidence, knowing that there's no pesticides or being grOWfl with chemicals, that
we truly adhere to the concept of "Aloha Aina". That there ... the soil is a living organism if
given the proper care, and so I feel really heartened that we hold these events every year. It's
an amazing event! My wife Irene, "please come up here". She does the food.
UU.'HU'H

MS. MINA: Yeah. Thank you, Members. Since 2001, I prepare all the food for the conference and I
cannot tell you how much people just love the produce that comes out of the island. I mean
they just can't get enough and I also work for the Maui County Farm Bureau. I do all their
special events. Last year, I did the Maui Onion Festival and we ran out of onions. And tourists
was like "where's the onions?" and so, you know, we love agriculture. We want to promote
agriculture on Maui. Maui is the most beautiful place to grow things year-around, and I work
with people. I work with ... you know, people think pineapple grows in trees, you know, the
tourists. And so we educate them; we ... we knowledge them; we get to, you know, we have
them taste stuff; so I truly thank all of you for just supporting the Maui Aloha Aina Association
and, you know, you folks ever
October, come out
see what we do.
I,
I'

for
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MINA:

... END
PONTANILLA:

ACTION:

you, agam.

DEFER. (MA, GB,

BM,

MV,

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Is there anybody out there that wants to provide public testimony at this
time? Seeing none, the meeting at Maui Waena School is now adjourned. Thank you .
. . . (gavel) ...
ADJOURN: 9:25 p.m.

APPROVED BY:
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